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FEDERAL BUREAU INVESTIGATION
WASHINGTON, D.C.

October 7, 2024
MEMORANDUM FOR: Members of Congress

SUBJECT: The FBI Believes That President Biden Has Been A Victim Of
Havana Syndrome.

The swift cognitive decline of President Joe Biden earlier this year was suspicious despite
his age. Based on that assessment, there has been a highly confidential medical review of
the President conducted over the last couple of months, one that he refused to cooperate
with before withdrawing as the Democratic Party candidate from the presidential
elections.

When discussed with him as a national security concern, the President ultimately and
reluctantly agreed. The preliminary conclusions of the examination note that his cognitive
decline appears to be “unnatural” and not related to his age. There is a strong suspicion
that the President is a victim of Havana Syndrome but with exposure at a very low level.
This is a new development as previous attacks were immediately debilitating. It is
unclear when this event occurred for the President or if it is ongoing.

It is believed that Havana Syndrome attacks have been conducted on private individuals
as well, including athletes to influence the outcome of sporting events. The most notable
athlete is Simone Biles during the 2020 Summer Olympics when she withdrew from the
team gymnastics competition complaining of disorientation. The results were a gold
medal for the Russian Olympic Committee athletes and a silver medal for Team USA.
The information accumulated over the years has never been publicly disclosed given its
sensitive nature. The intelligence community believes that all of these attacks are
conducted by an intelligence unit of Russia. Motivations for the current attack are
undetermined at this point in the investigation.

There is an immediate order to increase Secret Service protection of all major party 2024
candidates to thwart any further attacks. The US has credible evidence of another
imminent attack on high level politicians, including, potentially the current presidential
candidates.



